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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR REPORY

Hon. Mipguel Torres Diae, ILE,
Scerclary Department ol Transportation and publle Work

Report on the Financial Statements

We huve audited the accompanying statemunt of net position, statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position and statement of cash Mows, of the Puerto Rico Metrapolitan Bus Authority,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the reluted notes to the fiancial slatements, which
collectively comprise the Puerto Rico Metopolinn Bus Authority basic financial statements, We
did not andit the financial statements of the Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012,
These linancial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have heen
lwrnished Lo us, ind owr opinion is based solcly on the reporls of the other auditors.

Management’s Responsibility for the Finaucial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and Fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordimce with accounting prineiples generally sccepted in the United states of America; this
includes the design, implementatlon, and maimenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
undl fair presentation of financlal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether duc

Lo Mrisud or ercow,

Auditor’s Responsibilily

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our wadit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with uuditing standards generally accepted In the United States
af America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards requeire hat we
plan anel perform the audit (o oblain reasunnble assurance about whether the financial statements are

lree feom material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and
disclosures in the Minancial statements, The procedures selected depend on the andlior's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of malerial misstatements of the financial statemenis, whether
duc fo fraud or crror.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor consider internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fale presentation of the fnancial statements in arder to
design audit procedures that ave appropriate in the circumstances, but not for (he purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intermal contral, Accardingly, we cxpress
ne such opinion. An audit 4lso includes cvaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates mude by management, as well as
evalnating the overall presentation of the financial statements,



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide « basis
for owr audit opinions,

Masls for Qualificd Opinions

The Authority did not provide and actuarial valuatlon report to recond the liability and eurrent year
cost of the certain post-cmployment benefits described in Note 13 to the financial statenicnts as
required by acconnting principles gencrally aceepted in the United States of America (“GAADP"),
The cost of these benelily are recorded in the financial statements when paid which is method not

sceepted by GAAP.
Oualified Opinions

I our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinions”
paragraph, ihe Hinncinl statements referred 1o above present fairly, In all malerial respects, the net
position of the Pucrto Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority as of June 30, 2013, and the respective
changes in net position and cash Nows thereof for the year then ended in sccordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ameries,

Other Matters
Requived Supplementoary Information

Accomnling principles generally accepted in the Unites States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis on pages 4 1o 12 he presented to supplement the basic
financial statements.  Such Information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who consider it to be an essentlal ot
ot limancial reporting for placing (he basic financial stalements in an appropriate operational,
cconontic, or histovical context.  We have applicd cerluin limited procedures o the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standuvds geverally aceepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consislency with management’s responses Lo our
inquirics, the basie financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financinl statements. We do not express an opinlon or provide any assurance on Lhe
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sulficient evidence to express un

opinion or provide any assurance.

EMrer Infivinetion

Qur audit was conducted for the purpase of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Puctia Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority basic financial stalements. 'I'he
seliedule of expenditures of federal mwands is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is

nat & required part of the basic financial statements,

The schedule of expenditures of fedural awards is (he responsibility of management and is derived
from and refated direetly to the underlying accounting ind other records used 1o prepare the basic
financial statcments, Such Information has been subjected to the mditing procedures upplied in the
audil of the basic Mnancial statements wnd certain additional procedures, including comparing and
recanciling such infovmation directly to the underlying secounting and other records used Lo prepare
the basic financial statements or to basic fancial statements themselves, and other wdditional



procedures in accordance with auditing standacds pgencrally aceepted in the United States of
America.  In owr oplnion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all
material respeets, in relation to the basic lnancial statements as a whole,

Other Reporting Requived by Govermuent Anditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Stmdnrds, we have also issued our report dated
December 26, 2013 on our consideration of (he Puerto Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority internal
contral over fimncial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with centain provisions ol laws,
regulutions, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. “Iie purpose of that reporl s to
deseribe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting und compliance and the
results of that testing, wd not to provide an apinion on internal contial over financinl reparling or
on compliance,  That veport is un integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Govermment Auditing Standards in considering Puerto Rico Metrapolitan Bus Authority internal
neial reporting and compliance.

unkints
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Component Lnll of the Commanwealtl of Puertn Itien)

MANAGEMEN TS INSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED ILINE ), 20713 AND 2012

{Hnandited)

The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance and activity of the Puerto Rico
Metropolitan Bus Authority (“the Authority”) provides an introduction and tnderstanding of the
busic financial statcments of the Authorily Ffor the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, This
discussion was prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the fnancial
statements and the notes therero, which [ollow this scetion.

Finunvinl Mighlighis for 2013

¢ Nel position deficleney totaled $42.0 million at June 30, 2013.

e Net position deficiency increased by $154 million in 2013, uy compared to an increase of
approximately $3.5 million in 2012.

o Net caplial assets wotaled $44.7 million at June 30, 2013.

»  Net capilal assets decreased by 14.4% at June 30, 2013, when compared with balance at June
30, 2012 of $52.3 million,

Financlsl Highlights for 2012

e Net posilion deficiency lotaled $25.3 million al June 30, 2012.

¢ Net position deficiency increased by $11 million in 2012, as compared to a deercase off
approximately $1.3 million In 2011.

o Net capital assets totaled $52.3 million at June 30, 2012,

¢ Net capilal assets decreased by 18.2% at June 30, 2012, when comprared with the balance al June

30, 2011 of $63.9 million.

The Financial Statements
The basic financial statemcents provide information about the Authority’s business-type activities,

The financial statements arc prepared in accordunce with accolnting principles generally accepted
in the Uniled States of America ns pramulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standiwrds Bonrd

(GASB).

Overview of the Finaneial Statements for Business-Type Activities

The finameinl statemenis consist of the (1) statement of net position, (2) stalement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position, (3) statement of cash flows, and (4) notes to the financial
stalcments. ‘The finaneial statements are prepared on the acerual busis of accotiting, meaning that
all expenses are recorded when ineurred and all revenues are recognized when eamed, in
accordance wilh acconting principles gencrally accepted in the United States of Amerles.



PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Commomnwealil of Puerte Rico)

MANAGEMENT'S DESCUSSION ANI? ANALYSES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2012

(Nnaudited)

Stutesment wf Net Poxition
The statement of nct position reports all financial and capital resources of the Authority. The

stutement is presented in the formal where assets equal liabilities plus net position. Asscts and
liubilities are presented in order of liquidity and wre classified as current (convertible into cash within
one year) and nen-gurrent, The focus of the statement of net position is to show a picture of the
liquidity and health of the Authorily"s nel position as of the end of the year,

Ihe Authority's net asscts wre iepurted in the following cafeporics:

o Net Assedy Ivested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - this component of net assets consists
of all capital assets. reduced by the oulstanding bulanves of any bonds, notes, or other
borrewings that are attvibutable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets,
Although the Authority’s investinent in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it is noted
Wl the resources required to repay (his debt must be provided annually from operations and
fram the vperating grant allocated annually by the Commomwvealth of Puerto Rico, since the
cupital ussets themselves can not be used to liguidate liabilities.

o Unvestricted Net Assets - his component includes all net assets that do not meet the delinition of
el wssels invested in capital assets,

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positlony

The stalement of revenues, expenscs, and changes in net position includes operating revenues,
which consist of passenger and cargo revenucs and equipment and property rentals and operaling
expenses, such as salavies and employces benefits, depreciation on capital assets, repairs and
maintenance and ather general administrative expenses; and non-operating revenue and expenses,
such as the operating grants ftom the Commonwealth of Pucrto Rico, interest and investment
income, and interest expense. The focus of the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in nel
pusilion is the change in net position, This is similar to net income or loss and porteays the results of
operations ol the Authority for the entive operating period,

Kratement af Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows discloses nel cash provided by or used for operating activitics,
investing activilies, noncapital finaneing activities, and from capltal and velated fnancing activities.
This statement also portrays the health of the Authority in that current cash lows are sullicient o

pay carrent linbilities,

Notes to Financial Stafementy
The notes to financial statements are i integral part of the basic Mnancial statements and describe

the significant accounting policics, reluted-party transactions, deposits and investments, capital
assels, long-term labilities, defincd-benefit pension plans, and the commitments and conlingencies.
The reader is encouvaged to review the notes in conjunction with the managemeni’s discussion und

analysis and the financial statements.



PUERTO RTCO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Component Unil of the Conpmanwealth of Puerty Itica)

MANAGEMEN "5 DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
VEARS EMDED JUME A0, 2003 AND 2012

{Unnndiied)

Finnneinl Analysis of the Authority’s Business-Type Aclivities

Statements of Net Positinn

The Iollowing table refleets u condensed stmmary ol assets, liabilities, and net

Authority as of June 30, 2013 and 2012:

Asscis:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounis receivihle
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Capital Asseds:
Other capital asseis, net of accumulated
depreciation
Oiher assets
Totl Capital Asscts
Total Asscts

Liabilities:
Accounts and accrued expenses payable

Long term lablllies:
Due within | year

Due In more than | year
Total liabilities

Detered inllows of resonrees:
Deferred revenues

Total deferred intlow ol resources

Net Position
Mel invested in capital assets
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position (Deficit)

2013

2012

3 2195908

5 4,103,874

§ (41,974.617)

6,341,708 7,982,562
3,516,799 3,148,861
1,667,917 2,051,358
44,749,193 52,263,013
542,071 542,071
45201264 52,805,084
S 59013686 § 70,091,939
§ 50,561,544 § 43,701,832
2,502,888 2,711,462
45,685,517 46,776,737
98,749,949 93,190,031
2,238,354 2,238,354
2,238,354 2,238,354
44,749,193 52,263,013
(86,723,810) (77,599,459)

§ (25,336.446)

position of the



PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Component Hnit of the Commonweallh of Poerto Rico)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AN ANALYSIS
YIARS NI JLINE 30, 2013 AN 2012

[ Uit L'I[-j

Joewee 30, 2013

Current assets decrepsed by 21% (o $13.7 million, 'The change in current assets is primarily duc to a
decrease in accoimt recgivable from Puerto Rico Highway and Transportation  Authority,
Munsgement decided to write-0f1'$3.6 million from the accounts receivables of PRHTA, bascd on a
reporl issued by an external consultanl, which reflected that the amount billed for services rendered

during the years 2013 and prior, were overstated by a 37%.

Capital asscts decreased by 14.4% to $44.7 milllon. This decrense is the net result of the
depreciation lor the year amownting to $8.2 million net of capital assets additions of £1.4 million.
Capital assels are lunded with the proceeds from operations and operating and capital grants from
the Commonwealth ol Puerto Rico. In addition, the Authovity is « recipient of certain tunds under
IFederal program 20.507 “Urban Mass ‘Iransportation Capital and Opcrating Assistance Formula
Crant” granted by the 1S, Federal Transit Administration, which is used (o linance the acquisition

and maintenance ol capital assets,

Current liabilities increased by 14.1% to $55.5 million. This increase consists principally of a
increasc in accoumts wnd accrued expenses payable of $6.9 million,

Met position deficiency increased by 66% to a net deficiency of $42 million, This increase was the
result of an excess of expenses (operating and non-operating) over revenues (operating and non-
operating) and capital gramts of $13.5 million. The largest portion of the Authority’s net position its
represcits its investmenl in capital assets net of related debt oustanding vsed to acquire those

capital asscts.

Jrne 3, 2012

Current asscls decreased by 4.5% (o $17.3 million. All categories of current asscls remained
comparable W prior year,

Capital assets decreased by [18.2% to $52.2 million, This decrease Is the net resull of the
depreciation for the year amounting to $9 million net of capital assets additions of $1.2 million. In
addition the Authority charged to expense aboul $5 million previously recorded as construction in
progress for cost incurred in the overhanl ol certain tramsportation equipment beeause new evidence
oblained during the vear indicated that such overhaul does not increase the usefiil Hie of the related
assct. Capital assets are funded with the proceeds rom operations and operating and capital grants
from the Commonwenlth of Puerto Rico. In addition, the Authority is a vecipient of cerfain [unds
wnder Federal program 20,507 “Urban Mass Transportation Capital and Operating  Assistance
Formula Grant” pranted by the U.S. Federal Transit Administration, which is used to linance the

nequisition amd maintemanee of capital asscts.



PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Compuaent Tkt of e Commonwenltl of Puerta ltlea)

MANAGEMUENT'S DISCUSSION AN ANALYSIS
YEATRS LNPELD JUNE A0, 2003 AND 20012
{Uhgeeedlited)

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Authority completed un evaluation of ils capilal assefs as
parl of the implementation of a cupital ledger system. To perform this analysis the Authority
obtained all capital assets acquisitions and records from year 2000 to fiscal vear 2012 and based on
that information and analysis determined that the net hook value of cupital assels as of Tuly 1, 2009
was overstated by approximately $2.6 million. Therefore, prior years financial stutements were

restated to refleel the effect of this adjustments,

Current liabilities decreased by 11% to $48.7. This decrcased consists prineipally in a decrcasc in
segounts and accrued expenscs payable of $4 million and a decrease in amounts sutstanding undcer »
line of credit, which was refinanced, on a long-term basis.

Effective March 2013, the Authority refinunced amounts outstanding with a private bank under a
line of credit in the amount of' $3 million and « long-term loan in the amount of $34.5 illion into u
long-term |oan with the same bank. The new loan matures on March 2015 and is payablc in
manthly principul installments of $209,000 plus interest, Interest on outstanding balance is bascd on
a margin over LIBOR based on the debt rating piven 1o the Commonwealth of Pucrlo Rica's
general obligations by Moody's Corporation and Standard & Poors Financial Serviees 1.C as
defined in the agreement (2.62% at June 30, 2012). The note is sccurcd by the assipnment of the
dicsel tax revenues allocated by the Commonwealth of Muerto Rico.

Net posilion deficicney increased by 77% to a nel deficiency of $25.3 million. This incrense was the
result of an excess of expenses (operating and non-operating) over revenucs {operating and non-
aperating) and capital grants of $11 million, The lagest portion of the Authority’s net position
represents ils investiment in capital assets net of related debt outsianding used to acquire those

capital asscts.



PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

{A Component Unit of the Commonwealth af Fuerto Riva)

MAMNAGENMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Y EALRS NI JLGSL 30, 2003 AND 2012

‘Tnmidited)

‘The following table reflects a condensed summary of the revenues, expenses, and changes in net

position for the years ended Junc 30, 2013 and 20132

Yeurs Ended June 30

2013 2012

Operating revenues § 5,760,778 $§ 5395378
Cperating expenscs B5.638,614 104,517,104
Operating loss (79,877,830) (95,121,728)
Mom-operating revenucs:

Operating prants b4 16,615 36,134 166

Interest income (expense), net (1,936,105) (+4,193,476)
Total non-oparaling revenues 04,480,510 81,940,690
1.oss hefore capital contributions (15,397,320) (13,141,038)
Capital contributions - 2,178,246
Change in niet sssely {15,397,326) (11,002,792)
Mot assety deficit at beginning of year (26,577,291) (14,333,654)

§ (41.97617) _§ (25336446)

Met assets deficit @t end of year

Year Ended fune 30, 2013

Opuerating revenues which consisted principally of fires for timsporiation and other sevvices,
inercascd by 7% Lo $5.8 million,

Operaling expenses consisting mainly of salaries and cmployees benelits, deprecintion and
amortization, repairs and maintenance, diesel, insurance, professional services and pencral and
administrative deercascd by 15% to $85.6 million.  Additionally, a writc-olf’ adjustment in the
amoyunt of $3,574.216 was charged 0 the account reccivable balance due from Pucry Rico
Highway and Transportatlon Authority as of June 30, 2013, The adjustment arose from an analysis
performed by an external consulting firm in relation to the viding fees for transportation services
under the Magnetic Card Program, as requested by the said Apency. In fiseal year 2012, the
Authaority had a charge of $1 1 million, related to the overhaul, as established by the goidelines from
U8, Federal Transit Authority, which was not vequired for the current year. Also, a lotal ol £5
million was recorded as part of salarics und employee henefits in 2012, as the financial impacl for
benefits granted to participants under the program established by Act #70, while in fiscal year 2013,

the financial impact was only §1 million.



PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Camponent Unit of he Commonwealih of Pryerlo Iticn)

MANMAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDHD JLINE 30, 2013 ANIY 2012

(Urienteelfted)

During the current year ended the Authority continued with the implementation of the voluntary
retirement plan that commenced durlng fiseal year 2011,

On July 2, 2010, the Commonwenlth enacted Act No. 70 to establish a program that provides
benelits lor enrly retivement or economic incentives fur voluntary cmployment termination to
eligible employees, as defined; including employees of the Authority, Ael No. 70 established that
early retirement benelits will be provided to eligible employees that have completed between 15 to
29 years of credifed service in the Retirement System and will consist of biweekly benelits ranging
from 37.5% to 50% ol euch employee salary, as defined. In this carly retivement benelit program,
the Authority will make the employer contributions to the Retirement System and pay the
conesponding peasion until the cmployee complies with (he requirements of age und 30 years ol
credited serviee in the Retircment System. Economic incentives are available to cligible employces
who have less than 15 years of credited service in the Retirement System or who have at least 30
yeurs of credited service in the Retirvement System and the age for retivement or who have the age
for retirement, Economic incemtives will consist of u Fmp-sum payment ranging [fom one-month (o
six-month salary hased on cmployment yours, Additionally, eligible employees that choose o
participate In the early retivement benetit progiam or that choose the economic incentive and have
tess than |5 yeirs of credited service in the Retirement System are eligible 1o receive health plan
coverage for up to 12 months in a health plan selected by management ol the Commonweallly of

TPuerio Ricg,

The financial impact resulting for the benefits granted (o paticipants on this program was the
recognition within the Authority’s inancial statements of a liability of approximately $9.1 million
it the statement of net position as of June 30, 2013 and a charge of 51,0 million in the statement of
revenies, expenscs and changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2013. At June 30, 2013,
unpaid long-term benefits pranted on this program were discounted at 2.55%. The impact of $1.0
million is recorded us salarics and employee benefits in the accompanying lnancial statements.

Non-operating revenues consisted pringipally of operating grants from the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico and Federal Government, These aperating prants from the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico are annual appropriations from the general fund, The amount appropriated annually dependy
on the approved budget of the Commonwealih of Pucrto Rico,

In addition, the Authority receives operating and capital contributions from the 1.8, Federal ‘Transit
Administration, which are restricted to the aequisition and repairs of cerlain capital asscis,

During the year ended June 30, 2013 non-operating revenues decreased by 21% or $17.5 millian
mainly due to a reduction of grants received fom the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. These fimds
arc used to finance the Authority’s operating deficit.

In



PUFRTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Compponent Lndl of the Commonwealth of Puerio Ricn)

MANAGEMENT'S IISCLSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AN 2012

{Unuudited)
Year Eaded June 36, 2012

Operating revenues which consisted principully of fares for transportution and other services,
increased by 2% to $5.4 million. During (he year cnded June 30, 2012, the Authority recopnized
revenue from a contract with the Puerto Rico Ilighways and Transporiation Authority (PRHTA) in
the amount of $1.1 million. This revenue consists of the amount billed for scrvices performed
during the year ended Junc 30, 2012, Opevating revenues decrcased because during 2011 the
Authenity recopnized revenue under the contract with (PRHTA) related to fiscal years 2010 and
before in the amount of approximately $3 million as explained above,

Opurating expenses, which consisted prineipally of salaries and employees benefits, depreciation
and amortization, repairs and maintenance, dicsel, inswance, professional services and penerval and
administrative increased by 13.2% to $100.5 million. 'This incrcase was due to the following:

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Authority, following puidelines lrom 118, Federal Transit
Authority, performed a mid-life overhaul to cerlain of its tramsportation cyuipment. This overhaul Is
performed when the units reach its mid-life, generally 6 yenrs, in order for the unit to last It
estimated useful life of 12 yenrs. Since the overhanl did not result in an inerense in the useful life of
the unit it was recorded as an operating expense. Total cost of (his averhaul amointed Lo
approximaiely $11 million and was recorded us repairs and maintenance in the accompanying

lnamcial stulements,

During the ycar ended June 30, 2012, the Authority continued with the implementation of the
voluntary retirement plan that commenced during fiscal year 2011,

The financial impact resulting for the benehits granted to participants on this program was the
recognition within the Authority’s financial statements of a liability of approximately $8.1 million
in the statemient of nel position as of June 30, 2012 and a charge of' §5 million in the statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in et position for the year ended June 30, 2012, Al June 30, 2012,
unpuid long-term hencilts granted on this program were discounted at 1.46%. The impact of’ $5
million was recorded as sulavies and employee benefits In the accompanying financial statements.

Non-operating revenues consisted principally of operating grants lrom the Commonweallh of
Puerto Rico and Federal Government. 'These operating grants from the Commonwealth of Puciio
Rico are annual appropriations trom the general fund. The amount appropriated annually depends
on lhe approved budgel of the Commeonwealth of Puerto Rico.

In acldition, the Authority received operating and capital contributions from the U.S. Federal Transit
Administration, which are vestricted to the acquisition and repairs of certain capital ussets.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, non-operating revenues increased by 13.7% due 1o an
increase in grants received from ULS. Federal Transportation Authority used to linance part ol mid-
life overhoul described above and a deerense in opuerating grants received from the Conmmanwealth

ol Puerto Rico used to finance the Anthority's operating deficil,



PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Coingiopent Usnit af the Commonwealih of Puerta Wlea)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AN ANALYSIS
YEARS NI JUNE 30, 20013 AND 2012

* (Unaudited)

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2013, the Authority had invested approximately $44.7 million in capital asscls (net of
related depreciution) including transporlation equipment, land, buildings and structures and
machinery and equipment used in the operations. At June 30, 2012, the Authority had imvested

approximately $52.2 in capital asscts.

Major capital assets events during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 inelude the sequisition
and repairs of transportation equipment, which were funded principally by capital contributions

received.
ebi Administration

Flfective March 2012, the Authority refivanced amounts outstanding with a private bank under a
line of eredit in the amount of $3 million and a long-term loan in the amount of $34.5 into a
lomg-term Ioan with the same bank. The new loan matures in March 2015 and ls payihle in monthly
principal installments of $209,000, plus intorest, Interest an vulstanding balance is based on «
margin over LIBOR based on the debt rating given 1o the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico’s general
abligations by Moody's Corporation and Standard & Poors Financial Services L1.C as defined in
the agrcement (2.62% at June, 2013). The nole is sccured by the assipnment of the dlesel tax
reventies allocated by the Commonwealth of Pucrto Rico, The oulstanding long-term loan balance

is 834,35 million as of June 30, 2013.
CONTACTING TIHE AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report s desipned to provide our customers, investors, creditors, and the peneral
public with a gencral averview of the Puerlo Rico Metropolitan Rus Authority’s finances and to
how it utilizes the ceconomic resources that it receives. 1 you have questions whout this report or
need additional lnancial information, comact the Adwinistation OfTice at Pucito Rico
Metropolitun Bus Aulhority, 37 De Diego Avenue, San Juan, Puerto Rico.
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTITORITY

(A Component Unit of the Connnonwealil of 1"ieriu Rica)
STATEMENT OF WET POSITION
JIMNEE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts reccivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Capital Assets;
Other capital assels, net of accumulated
depreciation

Other asscly
Tolal Capital Assety
Tutl Assels

Liabllities:
Aceounts and aecrued expenses payable

Long term Habilitics:

Due within | year

Due in more than | year
Tatal Hubilitics

Deferred inflows of tesources:
Delerred revenucs

Total deterred inflow of resources

MNuet Position
Nel invested in capital assets
Unrestricted (deficit)
‘Total ret position (Deficit)

2013

2012

$ 2,195,998

5 4,103,874

6,341,708 7,982,502
3,516,799 3,148,861
1,667.917 2,051,558
44,749,193 52,263,013
542,07 542,071
45291264 52,805,084

_§ 59013,686

$ 30,361,544

$ 70,091,939

5 43,701,832

2,502,888 2,711.462
45,685,517 46,776,737
98,749,949 93,190,031

2,238,350 2,238,354
2,238,351 2,238,354

44,749,193 52,263,013

(86,723.810) _  (77.599,459)
_$_(LIT617) | $ (25336446)

The accompanying notes ure integrygl part of the finuncial statements.
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Component Unll of the Commonwealll of Poerto Rico)

STATENMENT (17 REVENUES, EXPENSES AMD CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YA NI JUNE 30, 2013 AN 2012

2013 2012
Operaling revenucs:
Passenger fares 4,889,909 $ 5,022,197
Advertising and other 870,869 172,581
Tolal operating revenues 3,760,778 3,395,378
Operating expenses:
Salaries and employee benetits, including voluntmy
termination benefits 57,763,725 63,390,100
Dicsel, gasoline, oil and lubricants 06,058,494 6,917,722
Depreclation und nmortization 8,184,569 9,097,168
Malterials, spare parts and repairs and maintenance 3,255,325 15,794,723
Utilitics 1,233,845 1,362,534
Professional services 2,644,978 2,545,721
Greneral oud administrative 6,497,678 1 A00, 1 38
Fotal operating cxpenses R5,638.614 100,517,106
Operating loss (79,877,836) {(95,121,728)
MNon-operafing revenues (expenses):
Ciasoling, diesel, petroleum and 1ax oil revenues 0,507,002 10,118,207
Operating prants:
Commonwealth of Teerto Rico 43,406,453 61,623,228
I'ederal Transil Administration 13,486,808 14,302,731
lmerest and other linancing expenses {1,936,103) (4,196,228)
Intercst income 16,352 2,732
Total non-operating revenues 64,480,510 81,940,690
Luss before eapital conteibutions (15,397,326) (13,181,038)
Cupitul contributions - 2,178,246
Change in net position (13,397,326) (11,002,792)
Met posifion deficiency
Beginning of year:
As previously repoited (25.336,440) (11.514,366)
Restatement of prior yeurs linancial statements {1,241).843) (2,819,288}
As restated _ (26,577,291) (14,333,654)
End of year 3 (41,974,617) $ (25,336,446)

The accompanying notes are integral part of the nancial statements,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Ricn)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003AND 2012

2013 2012
Cash Mows from operating activities:

Cash received lvom customers and users £ 7,732,138 5 4,290,286

Cush payments to supplicrs lor gouds and services (13,027,499) (33,065,359)

Cash payments W employees for services ~ (56,358,593) (51,398.284)

Net cash used in operating activitics {61,653,954) (80.173,357)
Cash flows from non-gapital linancing aetivitics:

Operating grants received from;

LS. Federal Transit Administration 12,269,620 16,534,342
Commuonwealth of Puerte Rico 52,559,292 70,939,585

literest puid (1,925,549) (2,900,7140)

Payment of notes payable (2,302,888} (1,785,248)
Net cash provided by non-cupital finuncing activitics 60,400,475 82,787,965
Cash flows from capital and related finaneing netivitios:

Acquisition of capital assers (670,749) (4,982,424)

Capital contributions - 2,178,246

Net cash used in capital and related lnancing activitics (670,749) (2.804,178)
Cash flows from investing activilies:

Interest received 16,352 2,752
Net deevease in eash and eash equivalents (1.907,870) (186.818)
Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning ol year 4,103,874 4,290,692

Iind of year $ 2,195,998 8 4103874

The accompanying notes are integral pant of the financial statements.



PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY
(A Compouent Unit of the Communwenlth of Pucrto Rica)

RECONUCHAATION STATEMEENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENINGED JUME 30, 2001 ANIY 2012

2013 - 2012
Reconcilintion of operating loss to net cash
used in operating activitios:

Operating Foss 5 {79877 436) 5 (95121,728)
Adjustimenis o reconcile opemting loss to net cash
used in operating activities:

Depreciation and wnortization 8,184,509 9,007,168
Decrease in capilal assels TO9.042 5,000,287
Changes in operating assets and liabllitles:

Actounts recelvable G0, 854 {1,105,092)
Inventory {367,4938) 171,495
Prepaid expuenses A3641 229,017
Acconnts and aceraed cxpenses payabile 6,701,779 (1,635,229)
Voluntary teaminalion benefits long-term 961,935 __ 3,190,725

Met eash used in operallng activities _S (61,653954) _ § (80,173,357

Schedule of Non-Cash Transactions:
Refinuncing of line ol credit and teom loan ¥ - 5 37,543,294

The accompanying notes are integral part of the finanelal ststements.



PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHHORITY
(A Compenent Unil of the Cammonwvalth of Pinerio Rice)

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENIS

YEAR EMDED JUNIE 30, 2013

I, Organiention and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Puerto Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority (the “Authority”) is a public corporation created by
Act No.5 of May 11 1939, as amended, to provide, develop, manape and maintain g public low-
cost land transportation system for citizens within the Metopolitan Area of Sun Juan, Bayamon,
Caroling, Guaynabo, Cataio, Loiza, Toa Bajs and Trujille Allo of Puerto Rico. This service is
principally linanced by appropriations trom the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, gramts from the
Federal Government and by passenger laves. The Authority is a component wnit of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and accordingly is Included in the genceal-purpose financial
statements of the Commonwealth. The powers normally exercised by a Bowrd of Dircclors we
vested with the Secrctary of the Depariment of Transportation and Public Warks (DTPW). The
Authorlly is exempt from the payment ol any taxes on its revenues and properties,

The accounting and reporting policics ol the Authority conform to accounting principles generally
aceepted i the United States of America, as applicable to governmental entities. The Autharity
tollows the Governmental Accounting Standard Boards (“GASB") under the hierarchy cstablished
by Statement No.5S, The Hierarchy of Generally Avcepted Aecownting Principles Jor States and
Local Governments, In the preparation of its financial statements.

The Autharity adopted the provisions of Governmental Aceounting Standaids Board Statement
No.20, Adccownting and Financial Reporting for Propeietary Funds and Otler Goavermmental
Entities that use Proprietary Fund decounting (“GASBE 20™). Tn adopting GASB 20, the Authority
clected to apply all Statements and Interpretations of the Financisl Accounting Standards Board
("FASBY), Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Rescarch Bulletins of the
Committee on Accounting Procedure issucd on or before November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The Authority has elected nol
to apply FASD siatements issued afler November 30, 1989,

Following is a description of the Authority’s most significan decounting policics:
Measurement Facus and Busis of Accounting

The uperations of the Authority are accounted for as cnterprise fund. Enterprise fonds are
accounted for on the Mlow of ccunomic resources meastirement focus and use the acerual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenue is recorded when carmed, and expenses we recorded at (he
time liahilities arc incurred, Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations for which
the pricing policics of the entity csiablish fees and charges desipned 1o recover its costy, including
capital costs such as depreciation and debt service.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statlements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepled in the United States of Amcrica requires management to make estimates and
ussumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and linbilities and disclosure of contingent
asscts and liabilities at the date of the financial statements und the reparied amounts of revenue
and expenses during the period, Actual resulls could differ from those estimalces,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY
(A Component Lnit of the Commaonwenlth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENIS

YUEAR ENDIED NI 30, 2013

Cash and Cush Equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cush equivalents we defined as shorl-term, highly liguid investments
that are rcadily convertible to known amounts of cash and are so near to their maturity that they
present Insignificant risk ol chunges in value because of changes in interest rates, Tn particular, they
include cash on hand and on deposit and short-term investments with mataritics of thiee months or

less,
Allvwnnee Tor Doubitfal Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is an amount that management believes will be adequale 1o
absorb possible losses on existing accounts receivable that may become uncollectible bascd on
cvaluations of collectubility of accoums receivable und prior credit loss experience. Because of
uncerfainties mherent in the estimation process, management’s estimate of credit losses Inherent in
the existing accounts receivable and refated allowance may change in the futwre.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting of fuel, spare purts, materials and supplics are valued at the lower of cost
(weighted average method) or markel.

Capilal Asscts

Cupital assets aro vecorded m histovical cost or estlmated historical cost, et of accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Capital asset Is defined by the Authority as assets with an initial cost
of more than $500 and an cstimated usclul life of more than one year. Depreciation and
amntization is computed on a staight-line method aver estimated vsefil lives of the related assel.
Maintenance aind repairs are charged to operations, while rencwals and betterments are capitalized.
When property and equipment are disposced of, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation
and amartieation are removed lrom the respective accounts and the resulting pain or loss is recorded

in operations,

The estimaled useful lives of the capital assets follow:

Buildings and structures 40 years
Pransportation eguipment 5-12 yemrs
Terminals 20 yewrs
Machinery awd equipment 5-10 years

The Authority periodically reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever evenls or clianges in
cireumstariees indicute that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. No impairment
ol capital asset was identiticd during the year ended June 30, 2013,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTIIORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commomwenlth of Puerte Rica)

WOTES 10 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAI ENIIED JUNE 3, 2013

Vaeation wul Sick Leave

Compensated absences are acerued when eamed by the employees, Empluyees may carry forward
their compensated absences as permitied by statute and may seltle then in a cash payment from the
Authority, if employment has ceased.

Nut ussets

Net ussels ave classified in the following two components in the accompanying statements of net
assely:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

This component of net assets consists of capital assets net of gecumulated depreciation and reduced
by the outstanding balance ol any bonds, morigages, notes, or ofher borrowings thal are atiributable
lo the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets, If there are slgnifican! unspent
refated debt proceeds al year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not
included in the ealeulation of this component of net assets. Rather that portion of the debt in
included in the same net asset componcnt as the inspent proceeds,

Lnrestricted

Unrestricted nel assels consist of net assels that do not meet the definition of mvested in capital
assets, net of related debt,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit nf the Commonwealth of Puerty Rice)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENITS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2013

Operating Revenues amdd Expenses

The Authority distinguishes between operating and non-operating revenues and expenses in its
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, amt Changes in Net Assets, The principal revenues of the
Autharity are received from palrons Tor the transportation services provided. I'he Authority also
recognizes as operating revenuc-adverlising chavges to customers and other related transportation
services, Operating cxpenses lor the Authovity include the costs of operating the transportation
fucilities, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets, All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses,

Condributions

The Authority is a recipivnt of federal funds received under prants with U.S. Federal Transit
Administeation (I'TA) lor the exclusive purpose of acquisition and repairs ol corfain capital usscts
with certain matching lnds povided by the Commonwealth of Puerlo Rico. Capltal grants of the
Authority arc reported as non-operating revennes rather than contributed capital as required by
GASD Statement No 33, Accamnting and Finanetal Reporting for Non-exchonge Transactions.
Capital Tunding provided under these grants is considercd carned as the related allowable

expenditure is incurred.

In addition, the Authority receives operating and capital grants Gom the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico. This grant, which is subject to annual appropriations, is used to Mnance the Authority's
operations and acquisition of capital assets. Amounts received under this grant are recorded as
revenues in the period stated in the prant.

Risk Fluancing

The Authority carvies cominercial insurance Lo cover casnalty, theft, claims and other losses, The
current insurance policies have not been cancelled or terminated, ‘The Authority has not settled any
claims in excess ol its insurance coverage during the three years, The Authority also pays premiums
lor workers compensation insurance to another component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto

Rico.

Acerual for legal elaims

The estintted amount of the liability for legal claims is recorded on the accompanying Statements
of Net Assels based on the Authority’s evaluation of the prabability of an unfavorable outeome in
the litigation of such legal claims. The Authority consults with legal counsel upon determining
whether an unfavorable ontcome Is expeeted. Because of uncertainties inherent in the estimation
process, munugement’s estimate of the Hability For legal claims may change in the near term.
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY
(A Compunent Unlt of the Cammonweslih of Puerle Rico)

MOTES 1O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUN 30, 2013

Revently Adopted GASB Stutements

The GASI has issued the following accounting pronouncements that have effective date after June
30, 2013

In March 2012 the GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items previously as Assets and Liabilitics. This
Stulement establishes accounting and fmmcial reparting standacds that reclassify, as delerred
outliws of resources or defened inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reporied as
assets and liabilities and recognizes, as ontflows of resources or inflows of resources, cerlain items
that were previously reported as assets and liubilities, [n addition, (his Statement amends or
supersedes requirements for the determiation of mujor funds and addresses other statement of net
position and govermment funds balance sheet prosentation issues, ‘The provisions of this stalement
are effeetive for financial statements for periods beginning aller ecember |5, 2012,

In March 2012 the GASB issucd Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections 2012 an amendment of
(GASD Statements No. 10 and No. 62, "Ihe objective of this Statement Is 1o improve accounting and
financial reporting tor o governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance
that resulted from the Issuance of (wo pronowcements, Stalements No. 54, Fond Balance Reporting
and Clovernmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codilication of Accounting and Financial
reparting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASE and AICPA Pronouncements. The
provisions al’ this staement arc cffective for financial statements for periods beginning alter

December |5, 2012,

In June 2012, the GASH issucd Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, The objective of this Statcment replaces the requirements
of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Renclits Pension Plans, and Note
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they related to
pension pluns thal wre administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter joinily
releried Lo as frust) that meet certain erfteria. Ihis Statement is clicctive for financial statements for
fiseal years beginning after June 15, 2013, J

I dune 2002, the GASB issucd Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions
Plans amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, The primary objective of this Statemenl is to
improve acconnting and financiul reporting by state and local povernments for pensions. It also
improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support
for pensions that is provided by other cntities. This Statement replaces the requivements of
Statement No, 27, Accounting tor Pensions by Stute and Local Governimental Vmployers, as well as
the requircments of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relute to pensions that are
provided (hrough pension plans administered s trusts or cquivalent arangements (heveafier Jointly
referved to as trosts) thal meet cerlain criteria. The requirements ol Statements 27 und SO remain
applicable for pensions that are not covered by the scope of this Sttement, The Statement is
clfective for fiseal years beginning afer June 15, 2014,

[ January 2013, the GASH issucd Statements No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of
Government Operations. This Statement ostablishes accounting and Mnancial reporting standards
related to povermment combinations and disposals of government operations.  As used in this
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Statement, the term government combinumtions includes a variely of transactions referred to as
mergers, acquisitions, and transfers ol operations.  The distinction belween a government merger
und a government acquisition is based upon whether an exchange ol signilicant consideration is
present within the eombination transaclion. Governinent mergers include combinations of legally
separate entities without (he exchange of significant consideration. This Statement requires the use
of carrying values to measwe the assels and liabllities in a government merger. Conversely,
government acquisitions are ransactions in which a government acquires another enlity, or its
operations, In exchange lor significant consideration, This Statement requires meastirements of
ussets acquired and liabilitics assymed generally to be based upon their acuisition values. “This
Statement also provides guidunee for Lansfers of operations that do not constitute entire legally
sepurate citities and in which no significant consideration is exchanged. ‘This Statement defines the
term operations for purposes of determining the applicability of this Statement and requires the use
of carcying vulues to measure the assets and liabilities in a transfor of operations. A disposal of' a
government’s aperations results iy the removal of specific activities of a government,  This
Statement provides accounting and financlal reporting guldance for disposals of government
operations that have been transterred or sold,  This Statement requires disclostres 1o be made about
governntent combinations and disposuls of government operations to enable linancial statements
uscrs o evaluate the nature and financinl eflects of those Lransactions. The requirements of this
Statement are cflcetive for povernment combinations and disposals of govemment operalions
ocourring in financiul reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2013,

In April 2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. The objective of this Statement is (o improve accounting and
linancial reporting by state and local povernments that extend snd receive nenexchange linancial
guarantees, This Statement requires a povernment thal extends a nonexchange finaneial gumantes
to recognize a liability when qualitative factors and historical data, it any, indicate that it is more
likely thin not that the government will be required to make a payment on the guarantce. ‘The
amount of the lability to be revognized should be the discounted present value of the best estimate
ol the futwre outMows expected to be incurred us & resull of the guarantce. When there is no best
estimute but a range of the cstimated future outflows can be established, the amount of the linbility
to be recognized should be (he discounted present valuc of the minimuwm amount within the range.
This Statement requires a government that has issucd an obligation gusrmteed in a nonexchange
transaction fo report the obligation until legally released us an obligor, This Statement abso requires
a povernment that is required to repay a guarantor for making a payment on a guaranteed obligation
or legally assuming the guaranteed obligation to continue to recognize « tability until legally as an
obligor. When a government is released as an obligor, the government should recopnize revenue as
a result of being relieved of the obligation. ‘I'his Statement also provides additional guidance for
intra-entity nonexchange lnancial puarantees imvolving blended component units. This Statement
specifies the information required to be disclosed by governments that extend nonexchange
lnuncial guarantees. In addition, this Statement requires new information to be disclosed by
povernments that receive nonexchange financial guarantees. The provisions of this Statement arc
clicetive for reporling periods beginning alter June 15, 2013

The impact of lhese statements on the Administration’s basic financial statements has not yet been
determined,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY
{A Component Uit of the Commonwealth ol Puertn Wico)

NOTES 10 FINANUIAL STATEMENTS

YEAN LNDED JUNI 30, 2013

2. Cash and Cush Equivalents
Cush and cash equivalents at June 30, 2013, consist of cash on hand and on bunk deposit.

The Authorily is restricted by law 1o deposit Tunds only in institutions approved by the Pucrio
Rico Tveasury Department, and such deposils are required to be kept in separate aecounts in the

name of the Authority,

Purswant to the Ivesiment Cuidelines for the Commonwealth adopled by the Government
Development Bank for Puerto Rico (“GDRY), (he Authority may invest in obligations of fhe
Commenwealth, obligations of the United Stutes, ccrlificates of depusit, commercial paper,
repurchase agreements, hunkers acceptances, or in pools of obligatlons of the municipalitics of
Puerto Rico, among others. There we no investments at June 30, 203,

For deposils, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the evenit of bunk failure, the Authority's
deposits may not be retwrned 1o it Under I'verto Rico statules, public funds teposited in
commercial banks must be fully collateralized for the amount deposited In excess of federal
depository Inswrance. All securitlex pledped as collateral are held by the Secretary of the Treasury
ol the Commonwealth of Puerto Rice. The bank balance of the Authority’s deposit at June 30,
2013, excluding deposits in the Governmenl Development Bank for Puerto Rico described Belosw,
amounted to 53,411,501 of which $943,045 is insured by Federal Deposit Inswunce Corporation

at Jone 30, 2013,

In addition, al June 30, 2013, the Authority maintained cash deposited at the Governmental
Development Bunk for Puerto Rico (GDB). in the amount $68,311. ‘Ihese amousts are
uncolluteralized since by law, the governmental banks of the Commonwealth of Pucrto Rico arc
exempt of the requirement of insuring the deposits of funds of the entitics of the Commonwealth

of Puerlo Rico,

3. Accounts Receivahle

Accaunts recelvable at June 30, 20 1.} cansist of:

Operating and capitnl peants:

LLS. Federal Transit Administration S [LA03.8%G

Commonweallli of Puerto Rico 1,219,831
Puerto Rico Highways s Transportation Authority 3,005,046
Other 1.278,612
Total 1377375
Less allowance tor doubtfil accounts (1.035,667)
Tatal 3 6,341,708

Account receivable from 1.8 Federml Transit. Administeation {"I'TA™) consisis principally ol
aperating grants pending to be received at June 30, 2013,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORI'TY
(A Componenl Lult af the Commaowwenlth of Muerto Rico)

MOTES 10 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Y1SAN BENDED IURE 30, 2013

The account teceivable Irom the Pucrio Rico Highways and Transportation Anthority (PRHTA)
consists of amounts due under a contragt with PRIITA in which the Awhority provides
transporlation scrviees to passenger using the urban train system. Under the lerm ol the contract
PFRATA will reimburse the Authority certain amounts specified in the contract for each passenger
served. The amount oulstanding represents the net amount billed to PRITTA for services performed
since July 2005 to Junc 30, 2013 alier the adjustment recorded based on an external consullant
agreed-upon  procedures report dated on June 24, 2013, Management decided 1o wrilc-olT
$3,574.216 fom the sccounts reccivables of PRHTA, which was considered uncollectible bused on
the wark performed by consultunt hived who concluded that amount billed during the years 2013

and prior, was overstated by a 37%.

d. Inventory
Inventory at June 30, 2013 consists of;

¥ 3,161,106

Spare parls

1Jicsel and gasoline 257,135
Supplics Y558
Total £ 35167

5, Acveounts nod Averved Expenses TPayable
Aceopnds pavable sl seeroeld expenses poyable ol June 30, 2003 eonsisi of:

Suppliers 5 TARADAT

Agencies and public corporations of the

Commonwealth of Pusito Rico 25,122,930

Compensated absences and olher related benefits 7,722,404
Payroll taxes and withholdings 8,244,544
Voluntary termination aud ather related employee benelfits 1.205,412%
Accrued interest 91,313
Other 33 A
Tetal % 50,561,544

Amount due to agencics and public corporstions of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico consist
principally of liabilities for payroll tax withholdings, utilities, workmen's compensation insurance
and other services.
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY
(A Component Hnit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20113

6. Cupital Assels
The following schedule summarizes the capitnl assets held by the Authority as of June 30, 2013;

Balance at Balance at
Juine 3 June 30,
2012 Increases Decrenses 2013

Assets nol being depiechnted:
L.and and improvements $ 2,500,000 § - % - $ 2,500,000
Construction in process 1,802,727 25,963 (1,802,727) 25,963
Capital assets not being depreciated 4,302,727 25,963 (1,802,727} 2,525,963
Assets being deprecinted;
Butlchings sl fmprovements 10,825 789 1,941,254 - 21,767,043
Terminals 3,504,102 15,000 ( 13,006) 5,594,102
Transportativa cquipmenl 71,014,434 - (R,218,410) 62,796,024
Machinery snd eguipment 24,146,277 1,200,295 (707,226} 24,639,346
Total 120,580,002 3,156,555 (8,040,642) 114,796,515
Fesy secomulated deprecistion 72,620,316 8,184 69 (8,231,600) 72,573,285
Capital assels being

depreciated, net 47,960,286 (5,028,014)  ( 709,042) 42,223,230
Total capitisl sssets, nel _5 52,263,013 § (5,002,05 l]‘ $(2,51 1,769} b odd, 749,193

7. Long- Term Dehi:

Long-terin debt al Junc 30, 2013 consisls of}

Bulanee Balance at Due within

ut 2012 Ineresses Deerenses 2013 e Year
Mofes payable SA7, 4R, 052 b ] - % 2,502,188 $ 34,545,164 52,502,888
Tatal o ﬁET,[MHJ}SE_ 8 - 42,502,858 534,545,164 £ 2,502,888

Fffective March 2012, the Authority relinemced amounts outstanding with & private bank into a
lomp=term loan in the sswne bank which matures in March 2015, It is payable in monthly principal
installments of $208,574, plus intcrest. Interest on outstanding balance is based on a margin over
LIBOR based on lhe debt rating given o the Commonweallh of Pucito Rica's general obligations
by Moody's Corporation and Standard & Poors Finaneial Services LLC as defimed in the agreement
(2.62% at June 30, 3013). The note is sceured by the assipnment of the diesel tax revenues allocated
by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The outstanding long-term loan balance is $34,545, 164 as of
June 30, 20103,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY
(A Companent Unit of the Commanwealih of Puerto Rico)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENINAD JUNE 30, 2013

The estimuted maturities of the note payable during the next yeurs are as follows;

Year Ending June 30,

2014 $ 2,502,848
215 32,042,276
Tl $ 34,545,164

4 Non-carrvent Liabilitios:

Chimges in non-current liabilities, other than the note payahle deseribed above, for the year ended
June 30, 2013 are summarized as follows:

Balanee at Balance al Due within
iz _Inereases Icereases 2013 One Yeur

Compensated

absenees 85,621,160 54,705,139 S(4,825,003) 55,501,296 %, 224,218
Acernad Tegal elaims 4,147,309 - ( 62.000) A, 085,508 -
Voluntary lermination
benetirs %,108,146 1,931,102 (969, 168) 9070 080 10401759
Ohher 416,003 - B - 416,003 I6d,670
Total SIB292818 _S6,636.241  $(5.856,171) S10072 888 $5429,647

9. Retivement Plan:

Delined Henelil Plan

The Government of Puerte Rico Employees Retirement System (ERS) is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefil pension plan sponsorcd by, and reported as a component unil of, the
Commonwealth of Pucrlo Rico (“the Commanweslih™), All repula employees of the Authority
uncler the age ol 55 at the date of employment become members of the ERS as u consequence ol

their employiment,

The ERS provides retirement, death, and disability benefity pursuant to Act 447, approved on May
15, 1951, as amended, which became effective on January 1, 1952, Disability vetirement beneliy
for oceupational and non-oceupational disabilities are available to members enrolled in the plan
before January [, 2000. Renelits vest after ten years ol plan participation.

The wmownt ol the ammity shall be one and ane hall percent (1.5%) of the average compensation
multiplied by (le number of years of ereditable service up to twenty (20) years, plus two porcent
(2%) of the average compensation multiplied by the number of yvems of ereditable service in
excess of twenty years. In no case shall the annuity be less than $200 per month,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTITORITY
(A Companent Unft of the Commonwenlth of Macrio Ricw)

MNOTES TO FINAMNCIAL STATEMUENTS

YEAR ENDIED IUNE 30, 2003

Participants who have completed at least thirty years of ereditable serviee are entitled to receive u
Merit Annuity, Such participants who have not attained illy-five vears of ape will receive 65% ol
the average compensation or i they have attwined fifty-five years of age will receive 75% of the
uverage compensation. Disability retivement benefits arc available to members for occupational and
non-oceupational disabilily. However, for non-occupational disability a member must have al least
ten years of scrvice, Mo benelits are payable i purticipants receive a refind of their accumulated

contributions.

Commuonwenlth legislation requires that employees hived before April 1, 1990 contribute 5.775% of
the first $550 of their monthly pross sulary and 8.275% of their gross monthly salary in excess of
$350. Employees hired after April 1, 1990 contribute 8.275% of their gross monthly salary, The
Authorily’s contributions are 10.275% of the pross monthly salary. Total employer conlrilutions
during years ended June 30, 2013 wnounted 1 approximately $1.8 million, which represented
100% of requircd contributions.

Nefined Contribution Plun
On September 24, 1999, an amendment to Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951, which created the RS,

was cimwted for the pupose of cstablishing a new pension program (System 2000). System 2000
beeame effective on Junuary 1, 2000. Employees participating in the ERS as of December 31, 1999
had the option to stay in the defined benetit plan or ranster to System 2000, Ciployees joining the
Authority on or aller Junuary |, 2000 nre only allowed 1o become members of System 2000,

System 2000 is a delined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Under this new plan,
lhere is n pool of pension assets. Which arc Invested by the ERS, together with those of the current
defined benelit plan. Benelits al vetiement age are not pusanteed by the Commonweallh, The
annuity is based on a formula that assumes that each year the employee's contribution (with a
minimum of 8,275%) of the employee’s salary up to a maximum of (1059%) is invested in an account,
which will either: (1) earn a lixed rate based on the two-vear Constant Maturity Treasury Note or
(2) earn a rate equal to 75% of the retumn of the LRS’s investment portlolio (net of management
fees), or (3) earn a combination of both alternalives. Participants receive periodic account
stutements similar to those ol defined contribution plans showing thelr acerued balanecs,

System 2000 reduces the retivement age from 65 years Lo 60 for those cmployees who joined the
ERS on or aller April 1, 1990, Disability pensions are not granted under System 20010,

The Authority’s contributions of 10.275% of the employee’s salary arc used to fund the defined
benefit plan. Total Authority's contributions during the tiscal year ended June 30, 2013 amounted to
approximately $1.3 million which represented 100% of required contributions.

Addlitional information on the ERS is provided in its financial statements for the year cided June

30, 2013 u capy ol which can be obtained lrom the Administrator of the Retivement System: ().
Box 42003, San Juan, Puerta Rico (0940,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY
(A Compneent Unit of the Commwavenith of Puerto Wien)

NOTES TO FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNFE 30, 2013

10. Commitments und Contingent Liabililies

11

Litigution
‘The Authority Is involved in litigation arising in the normal course of operations. Management

believes that its ultimate liability, it any, in connection with these matters will not have a material
effect on the Authorlty's Hnancial condition and resulls of operations, Due to uncertainties in the
settlement process, It is al least reasomubly possible that management's view of the outcome of
these claims will change In the newr term, Based on advice of legal connsel, management has
recorded an estimated litigation and claim loss of approximately $4.1 million as of June 30, 2013

Federul Assistunce Programs

The Authorily is a sub recipient of a federal linancial assistance program. This program is subjeet
to audits in accordance with the provisions of OMB Cireular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, or o complinnce audits by prantor agencies. The
amount, il any, of expenditures which may he disallowed by the granting apencics cannot he
determined at this time, although the Authority expects such amounts, il'any, not to be significant,

Yolimtary Terminntion Benelits
On July 2, 2010, the Commonwealth enacled Act No. 70 to cstablish a program that provides

benefits for early retircment or economic incentives for voluntary employment termination to
cligible employees, as defined, Including employees of the Authority, Act No. 70 established that
cirly retirement benefits will be provided 1o eligible cimployecs that have completed between 15 to
29 years of credifed scrvice in the Retirement System and will consist of biweekly benefits
ranging fiom 37.5% to 30% ol cach employee salary, as delined. In this early retivement benefit
program, the Authority will make the employer contributions to the Retirement System and pay
the corresponding pension until the employee complics with the requirements of age and 30 years
ol ercdited service in the Retirement System,

Economic incentives arc available (o eligible employees who have less than 15 years of credited
scrvice in the Retirement System or who have at least 30 years of credited service in the
Relirement System and the age lor retirement or who have the age for retivement, Ticonomic
ineentives will consist of @ lump-sum payment ranging fiom onc-month to six-month salary based

ot employment years.

Additionally, eligible employees that choose to participute in the early vetirement benefit program
or that choose the cconomic incentive and have less than 15 years of credited service in the
Retirement System are cligible (o receive health plan coverage lor up to 12 months in a health
plan selected by management of the Commanwealtl o Pucito Rico.

The financial impact resulting for the benelits granted to participants on this program was the
recognition within the Aothority’s financial stements of a liability of approximately $9.1 million
in the statement of net ussets as of June 30, 2013 and a charge of $1 million in the statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in el ussets for the yvear ended June 30, 2013. At June 30, 2013.
unpaid long-term benefits granted on this program were discounted at 2.55%.
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY
(A Comprenent Undt of the Commomwenlth of Puerto Ricn)

MNOVHS 10 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YA ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

12. Operating Finuncial Assistance from the Commonwenlth of Puerto Rico

As shown in the sceompanying linancial statements, the Authority has incurred in accumulated
losses after operating and capltal conteibutions in (he umount of $86.7 million and as of June 30,
2013 the Authority’s liabilities exceeded its assets by approximately $42.0 million, In addition, at
dune 30, 2013 the Authorily has a working capital deficiency of approximately $41.8 million
making it difficull for the Authorily Lo pay its liabilitics in the normal course of business, These
Facts indicate that the Authority nceds the continued support from the Commonwealth of Pucrio
Rico in the form of operating prants to continue o operate at its presemt level and to continue as o
going concern. The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico has experienced budgel constrains during the
curtent and prior years which have resulted In reduetions in the operaling grants provided Lo the
Authority, Management belicves that sinee the Iransportation service provided by the Awthority is
an essential service to the people of Puerto Rico, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico will continue
to fund the operational deficits incored by the Authority. Any significant reduction in (hese
operating prants and financial support will alfect the ability of the Authority to provide the
tramsportation services and to continue as a poing concern.

L3, Other Post-Employment Benefits
The Autherily provides cerlain post-employment benefits to cligible employees In accordance
with collective bargain agicements, These benefits conslsl principally of medieal nsurance
coverage fir a petiod nol to exceed 5 years after retirement und honus at retlrement dute based on
years of services. The cost of these benefits is recorded in the financial statements when the

related benefit is pald,

14, P'rioy Period Adjustment

The Beginning balunce of net wssely deficiency was increased by the amount of $1,240,845
because non-operaling revenues reccived from the Commonwealth of Puctlo Rico of 2013 was
crroneously recorded as non-operating revenue on the audited financial statements a5 of and for

the year ended June 30, 2012,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLI'TAN BUS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commanweulth of Puertn Rleo)
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES (F FEDERAL AWALRDS

YEAR JUNIL 3L 2013

Federal CFDA

Federal Grantor/T*ass-Trough
Mumther

Gramtor/Program Title
Federal Transit Administration

Direet
Federal 'Transit Administration Capital and 20.507

Operating Assistance Formula Granls

Tolal expenditores ol federal awards

A4

Federal
Expenditures

% 13,486.808

$13.486 808



PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Commanyealth of Paerto Rico)

MNOTES SCHERULLE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Y AR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Cieneral
The accompunying schedule of expenditures of lederal awards presents the anctivity of federal

awards progrims of the Puerto Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority (“the Awhority™), & component
unit of the Commonwalth of Puerto Rico. ‘e Authority reporting entity is defined in Note | (o
(he Authorily's basic fimuncial statements. All federal awards received directly from federal
agencies as well us federal awards passed through other governmental agencies are Included in the
schudule of expenditures of federal awards,

lhasis of Accounting
The accompanying schedule of expenditwres of lederal awards is presented using the acerual basis

of accouting, which is deseribed in Note | 1o the Authority’s basic financial stalements,
Expenditures are detenmined using the cost accounting principles and procedures set forth in OMB
Circular A-87. Cost Principles for States, Local and Indian Tribal Governments.

Reeonciliation to Fiunneial Statcments
Information reported in the uccompanying schedule of expendilures of foderal awards has been

reconclled and agrees to the information reported in the Authority’s basic financial statcments.
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Certified Public Accountants oI, Consultants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOR'T

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT ALIDITING
STANDARDS FOR PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

Hon. Mizuel Tores Ding, PLE.
sccrctury Department of Trimsportation and Public Work

We have audited in accordance with quditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of
America and the standards applicable o financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standurds issued by the Comptroller General of the united States, the financial statements of the
Pucrlo Rico Metropolitan Bus Anthorlty as of and for the veur ended June 30, 2013, amd the
related notes to the financial statements, which colleetively cimprise Pucrto Rico Metrapolitan
Bus Authority basic financial statements, and have issued our report thercon duted December 26,

2013,
Internal Control over Finunelnl Reporting

I planning wnd performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Pucito Rico
Metropolitan Bus Authority internal control over financial reporting (internal controt) 1o
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumslunces for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on (he financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
apinion on the effectivencss of Puerto Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority internal control,
Accordingly, we do not express and opinion on the effectiveness of Pucrto Rico Metrapolitan Bus

Authority internal control,

Cur consideration of internal contiol was for the limited purpose deseribed in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all defiviencies in internal control that might be
material weakness or significant deficiencies and therefare, material wenknesses or signilicant
deficiencies may exist that were not identificd.  However, as described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencics in internal control thal
we consider to be material weaknesses and slgnificant deficiencics. A deficiency in internal
cimtrol exists when the design or operation of a eontrol does not allow management or cmployces,
in the normal course of performing their assipned lunctions, to prevent, or detect and correcl
misstatements on i timely basis. A material wenkness is g deliciency, or a combinaiion of
deficicncies, in internal control such that there is g reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s Thancial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected
on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencics deseribed In the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs o be material weaknesses 13-18-01, 13-FS-02, 13-1°S-07 and 13-

HA-(R,
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combinution of deficiencics, in internal control that is
less severe than a malerial weakness, yet important enough to meril wltention by those charged
with governance, We consider the delicicncies deseribed In (he accompany schedule of lndings
and questioned costs Lo be significant deflciencies 13-F5.03, |3-FS-04, 13-1'S-05, 13-FS-06 and

13-SA-01.
Compliance und Other Matters

As part of ablaining reasonable assurance about whether Pucrto Rico Metropolitan Bus Autharity
financial statements ave free from materiul misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certaln provisions of faws, regalations, contracts, and prant agreements, noncompliznce with
which could huve u direct and material effect on the determination of financial statensent amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective or our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opiion, The results ol our tests disclosed
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reporied under CGovernment
Audlting Stundurds and which are described in (he sccompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as ftems 13-FS-03, 13-I8-04, 13-FS$-05 and 13-8A-01.

'uerto Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority Response lo Findings

Puerto Rico Metropolilan Bus Authorlty icsponse to the findings identified in our audit arc
deseribed in the accompunying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  Puerte Rico
Metropolitan Bus Authorily response was not subjected to the auditing procedores applicd in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we expess no oplnlon an i,

Purpose ol this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of onr testing of internal control al
compliance and the resull of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectivencss of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an andit performed in
secordimee with Government Auditing, Standards in considering the entity’s internal contro) and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not sultable fir iy other purpose.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

REPORT ON COMPLIANCIE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PR( YGRAM; REPOIR'T ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF TEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Hon. Miguel Tomves Diaz, P.E.
Secrctary Depurtment ol Transportation and Public Works

Report on Complinnee for Each Mujor federal Program

We huve audited the Puerto Rico Metropolitan us Authorily (the Authority) compliance with the
Lypes of compliance requirements deseribed in the OMB Cironlar 4-133 Compliance Supplement
that could have a dircet and material eflcel on each of the Autharity's major federal programs tor
the yew ended Junc 30, 2013, The Authority’s major lederal programs arc identified in the
summiry of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of tindings und questioned

cosls.
Management'’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirement of laws, repulitions, contracts, and
grants applicable (o its federal proprams.

Awlitor’s Responsihility

Our responsibllity is to express an opinion on complisnce for each ol Authority’s major federal
programs hased on our audit of the types of compliance requirements elemed to above.  We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with aud iting standards pencrally aceepted in the
United states ol America; the standards applicable to financial audits contwined in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of Statcs, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 requive that we plan and perform the audit to oblain repsonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types ol’ compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a dircct and material effeet on a major federal program occurred. An audlt Ineldes
examining, on a test busis, evidence about Puerto Rico Metropolitan Bus Authority compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstaneges,

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
[ederal pogram.  However, owr audil doss not provide a legal defermination of Authority's

camplinnee,
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Basis for Qualified Opinion on VFederal Transit Administration Capital and Operating
Assistunee Formula Grants

As deseribed in the accompunying schedule of findings and questioned costs, Authority's did not
comply with requirements regarding Equipment and Real Properly.  Complianee with such
requircments is neeessary, in our opinion, for Authority’s to comply with the requirgments

applicable to that program.
Qualificd Opinion on Klentified Major Federal Program

It our opinion, cxcepl for the noncomplianee described in he Basis for Qualilicd Opinion
paragraph, Authority's complicd, in all material respeets, with the types of compliance tequirements
referred 1o above that could have @ direct and material effect on Federal Transit Administration
Capital and Operating Assistance Formula Grants for the year ended June 30, 2013,

Other Matlers

The results of owr auditing procedwres disclosed other instances of noncompliance, which arc
required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are describe in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as ilems 13-08-03, 13-FS-04, 13-FS-05

and 13-SA-01.

Authority’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in owr audit we described in the
accompanying schedule of lndings and questioned costs.  Authority’s response was not subjeeted
lo the audiling procedurcs applied in the audit of complimnce and, accordingly, we cxpress no
apinion on the responsc.

Report on hiternal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over complianee with the types of compliance requirements relerred to above. In plunning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Authority's internal contral over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal progeam to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for cach major federal program and (o test and
repart on internal cantral over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of internal control aver compliance.
Accordingly, we do net express an opinion on the eflectiveness of Authority's internal contiol over

compliange.

Our cansideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose deseribed in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed w identity all deficiencles in internal control over
compliance that might be material weakness or significant deficiencies and therctore, material
weaknesses or significant deliciencies may exist that were nof identificd. However, as discussed
below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be

material weakness and significant deficlencies.

A deflciency in internal contral over compliance cxists when the design or aperation ol a control
ovar complianee does not allow management or employees, in the normal course ol performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or deteet and correet, mmcomplianee with o type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a thinely basis. A matevial weakness in infersal contral over
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eamiplianee is o deficiency, or combination of deficicncies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliunce with 4 Lype of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and conected, on a timely basis.
We consider the deficlencics in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned cosis as items 13-FS-01, 13-F5-02, 13-1°5-07 and 13-SA-02,

A significunt deficiency in intcrnal control over compliance Is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over complionee with a type ol compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than n material weakness in intemal control over compllance, yel
important cnough o meril attention by Ihose churged with governance.  We consider the
deficicncics in internal control aver complianee described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs as items 13-1°S-03, 13-FS-04, 13-F8-05, 13-FS-06 and [3-SA-01.

Authority’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identificd on our audit ae
teseribed in the nccompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  Authority’s response
wits ol subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly,

W express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this repott on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that lesting based on the requirements
ol OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not sultable for any vther purpose.

Report on Schedule of Lxpenditure of Federal Awuards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the linancial statements of Pucito Rico Metopolitm Bus Authority as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2013, and have issued our report thereon dated December 24, 2013, which
contained a qualitied opinion un those financial statements.  Ouwr audit was conducted for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as o whole, “I'he nccompanying schedule
of expenditures of lederal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part ol the Minancial statements, Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates divectly to the underlying
scconnting and other records used o prepare the linancial statements. The information hus heen
subjected to the auditing procedores applicd in the audit of the financial slatements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the fimmcial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with nuditing standurds
generally aceepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the schedule ol expenditure of
federal awards is fuirly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statemenls as a

whole.
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Compenent Unil of the Commaenwenbth of Puerio Rico)

SUHLEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Y AR ENMDEDR IUNE 30, 2011

Section 1 - Summary of Auditur’s Report
I. The type of opinion issued in the financial statements Qualiticd
2, The independent accountant’s report uh internal contral over

hinancial reporting deseribed:
& Significant  deficiencics noted  consldered  muterial

wenknesscs Yes
b. Significant deficiency noted thut is not considered v be a
material weakness
Yes
3. Noncompliance considered material to the financinl stitements
was disclosed by the audit
Yes
4. The Independent accountants report on Internal control over
compliance with requirements applicable 0 major Federal
mwards deseribed;
i, Slgnilicam deficicney noted considered to be 2 material
weakness Yes
b. Signilicant deficicncy noted that is not considered to be a
malcrial weaknesses No
5. The opinion expressed in the independent accountant's report
on compliance with requircments applicable to major Vederal
awards Qualified
6. The audit disclosed findings o be reported in accordance with
scetion 5H) (a) of OMB Cireular A-]133 Yes
7. The Authority's major program was:
Name of Federal Program or Cluster CI'DA No
Federal  Transit  Administration  Capital  and Operating
Assistunce Formula Grants 20.507
8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs us those terms are defined in OMB Civeular A-133 $300.000
9, Audilee qualiticd as a low risk auditee under section .530 OMB
Cireular a-133 My
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Component Unlt of the Commaonwenlth of Puerto lica)

SCHEDULE OF FINDIMNGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR NI JUNL 30, 2013

Section 2 — VFindings Relaling to the Financial Stalements Reported in Accordance wifh
Governmuent Auditing Standards

Finding 13-'8-01 {Material Weakness)

Clondition;
The Authority maintains a sparc parls perpetunl inventory svsiem which is not reconciled

periadieally with physical counts. Differences are almost identilicd and processed at the end o’
fiscal year. Test counts vealized during our audit showed signilicant differences with the perpetual
records. This condition is similar as in prior year audir.

Criterio:
Perpetual inventory records provide a method for proper safeguarding of inventory against loss and

intentional or unintentional ervars.

Cleatise of Conelltion;
Perpetual inventory records are not updated on a timely basis for purchases and usage and are not

reconciled periadically with the general ledger.

Effect aof Condition:

Perpetual inventory records do not refleet the actual value and quantitics of the spare parts
inventory. Errors in spave parts inventory could go undetected sesulting In improper safepuard of
this assel. Significant varlances between the actual physical count and the perpetual records ennnot
be investigated due to the lack of timely reconciliation pracedures. Lack of proper internal control
procedures over spare parts inventory could result in improper charges to federal program exposing
the Authority to unallowable costs by LLS Federal Transit Administration.

Audilee Respose:
Management accepted the condition and Is working on a Corrective Action Plan.
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PUERTO RICO METROI'OLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Compronent Uit of the Commuonwealth of Puertn Rico)

SCHEDULE OF FENIINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR EMIED HINE M 2000

Recommendation:
The Authority should implement procedures that require monthly reconeiliations of the spure pants

inventory as telleeted in the general ledger and the perpetual inventory record. Dilferences should
be investipated and adjusted,

In addition, to assure that perpetaal records present an aceurate rellection of guantities on hand, a

formal program ol eycle counting procedurcs should be instiluled. These procedwes should include

Lhee Tollowing:

o  Formal scheduling of items to be counted and periodic management review to assure adherence
to the schedule.

o Reconciliation of perpetusl records and actual counts.

o Adjustment ol perpetual records to actual quantities resulting from known differences and
documentation of the reasons for such adjustments,

o Follow-up to determine the causes lor differences so that procedal weaknesses may be

remedied,
o Ieriodic reporting to approprialc Authority personnel of the results of the eyele counting
provedures.

Finding 13-F5-02 (Muaterinl Wenkness)

Condition:

The closing process is informal and needs a clear definition of responsibilitics and communication
between different departments involved, In certain instances no limely communication or
documentation is provided lo the accounting department for the proper recording of non-routine
ansactions. This condition is simikar as in prior year audit,

(riteria:
Financial reporting amd closing process should be documented in writing and  should  be
communicated on a limely basis to all departments and individuals involved in the process.

Cenese of conddition:

The tinancial reporting closing process is informal and not well documented. In nddition, roles and
responsibilitics in the linancial closing and reporting are not communicated on a timely basis to
approprinte departments and individoals,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Companent Uil of the Commomwealth of 'ugrio Rico)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUUESTIONED COSTS
VAR LNDED JUNIE 30, 2013

Lffeet of Condition:
Certain accounting transactions we not recorded on a timely basis resulling in delays In the interim

and year end closing process.

Recammendlation;
In order to ensure that all accounting procedures are performed on a timely basis, management

should establish policies to document the month and year end procedures that should be followed
bye the accounting department as well as any other depariment that provide finaneial information
required for the preparation ol financial statements, This could be accomplished by the develop of a
compreliensive checklist that cover all procedures that the Authority determines necessury to be
performed on u periodic basis including, but not Hmited to, month end procedures such as bank
reconciliations, and general ledger account analysis, cte.

Auditee Respose:
Management accepted the condition and is working on » Correctlve Action Plan.

Finding 13-F§-03

Cenlition:

AtJune 30, 2013 the Authority has amounts owtstanding with other public corporations or agencies
ol the Commonwealth of Pucrto Rico amounting to approximately $33,367,480. This amount
represents amounts due for payroll withholdings, utifities and other related services, “This eondition

is similar as in prior year audit.

Criteriar
Laws and regulations vequire that amounts due w other entities of the Commonwealth of Puerty
Rlco be settled in the novmal course of business. In addition kews and regulations required that taxes

withheld be paid as required,

Cause of Concdition:
Cash Hows problem has precluded the Authority from making payments w reduce such linhilities,

which in certain cases results in the sccumulation of interest, and penaltics.

Fffect of Candition:
The Authority is nol in complianee with applicable laws and regulations. Tn addition, the Authority
could be exposed 1o a signllicant amonnt of neeomulated interest, and peralties on the scewmulated

debi.

Recommendaiion:
Management should look for financing alternatives to comply and pay these labilitics when due in
accordance with laws and repulations in order to avold the payment of interest and penalties,

Audites Respose:
Management accepied the condition and is working on a Corrective Action Plan.
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTITORITY

(A Component Unbt uf the Commanwealth of Puerto Rico)

SCHEDULE 01 FINDINGS AMD QUESTIONTD COSTS
YEAR ENLIL JUME 30, 2013

Finding 13-FS-04

Crunelition:
During vur audit we observed that persannel files are not being kept current and in some instances

were incomplete. In 24 of the 6 files selected for examination form 1-9 was not included.

Criteria:
Laws and regulations requive that personnel liles should be kept current and should include all
required documentation.

Canse of Condition:
Controls and procedures thit require that cmployee files be current are not carricd oul consistently

and there is no proper supervision that require compliance with established policy.

Effect af Condition.
By not keeping personnel [iles current, the Authority is exposed to penaltics in case of legal clyims,

In acddition the Authority is not in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Recommendoition:
Procedures should be implemented (o assuve that all personnel [iles are current and complete n

accordance with kows and regulations.

Auditce Respuse:
Management nceepted the condition und is working on a Corrective Action Plan,

Finding 13-F5-05
Coneliticm:
In ceslain instances we noted that social security tax wias paid late. This condition is similar as in

prior year audit.

Criterin;
Sacial sceurity tax should be paid ws vequirved in laws md regulations,

Clanse af Condition:

The payroll department docs not inform corvectly the amount that shonld be paid 1o the accounting
departiment.
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Compunent Unit of the Commnnwealth of Puerie Rice)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSIS
YEAR ENII2 N 30, 2013

Effect aof Coundition:
The Authority is not in compliance with laws and regulations and is subject Lo the payment of

penalties and interest on (he unpaid amount,

Recommendation:
Proper controls should be implemented in order to be sure that the weekly amount dug of social

security is informed correctly Lo the acconnting department and is paid in accordance with laws and
regulations.

Auditee Respose:
Management accepted the condition and is working on a Corrective Action Plan,

Finding 13-F8-06

Condition;
The Cuble System reported obtained from cach bus at the end of the day, which details the number

of passengers Lhat used the service during the duy and the related rates is nof reconciled with the
amount of cash delivered to Ranger American lor deposit into the bank,  This condition is similar
as in prive year audit,

Criteria:

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow munagement or
employces, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on o timely basis.

Ceanse of Condition:
Bus drivers wre not using the Cubic System Lo keep track of passengers using the service during the

day and the applicable rates,

Effeet of Condition:
Revenues from passengers are subject to errors and could be mlsstated.

KRecommendation;
Bus drivers should be lnstructed and trained to use the Cubic System o keep track of the passenger
aclivity during the days. This will assist managememt in making an independent verification of

passenger revenues accounted for during a particular period.,

Audites Respose:
Management accepted the condition and is working an a Correetive Action Plan,
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PUERTO RICO METROI’OLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

{A Compouent Unit of the Commonwenlth of Puerto Rico)

SCHEDULY 01 FINDINGS AND QUESTIONEDR COSTS
YEAR ENDED NG 3, 2013

Findings 13-F5-07 (Material Weakncss)

Clondition:

The Authority records the cost of certain posi-employment benefits provided to eligible cmployees
in accordance with collective burgaining agreements when paid which is a method not aceepted hy
accotmfing principles gencrally sccepted in the United States of Anericn ("GAAP™.,  This
condition is similar as in prior year audit,

Criteria;

GAAP requires that the cost and the lability for post-emplovinent benefits be determined using an
actuarial valuation perform at leasl overy two years, In addition GAAP requircs that the cost ol
post-cmployment benefits be recorded using the accrual basis of accounting,

Canse of Condition:
Management was unable o hire an actuary to perlorm the evaluation required by GAAP.

Effect af Comdition:
The Authority’s financial stateiments are nol in uccordance with GAAP and could be materially
Iisstated,

Recommendation:
Minagement should hire an wctwary to perform the evaluation required by GAAP. Financial
statements should be adjusted accordingly.

Audilee Respose:
Managemunt accepled the condition and is working on a Corrective Action Plan.
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

{A Component Unit of the Commanwealth of Pueriu Ricu)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONID COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20113

Section 3 — Findings and Questioned Costs Relating (o Federal Awards
Findlug 13-8A-U01

Federal Program:
20.507 Federal Transit Administration Capital and Operating Assistance Formula Grants

Faderal Grante
Feder] Transit Administration

Compliance Requivement;
Reporting

Reporting Requirement;
Non-compliance in relation to a compliance requircment

Condition:

During our procedure to test compliunce with the federal program reporting requirement, we noted
that the Quarterly Financial Stalus Reports R periods ended September 30, 2012, December 31,
2012, March 31, 2013 and June 30, 2013 were not submitted on time.

Criteric:
The Authority should submil reliable financial information as required by the Federal award.

Clanse of Conelition:
The Nnancial stus reports are prepared electronically and no submitting evidence is maintained lor

Irther exantination.

Effect of Condition:
The Autharity should review reports submitted to the LS. Depariment of Transportation and
monitering  provedures  should he  established 1o ensure that Federal Awards  compliance

requircmenls are always adhered .,
Finding 13-5A-02

Federal Program:
20.507 Pederal Trwmsit Administration Capital and Operating Assistance Formula Grants

Federal Gramwtor:
Federal Transit Administration
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Compronent Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerio Ricu)

SCHEDULE (OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COS1 S
VAR ENDED MUNE 30, 2013

Compliance Regulrement:
Activities Allowed and Unallowed

Reporting Requivemen::
Non-compliunce in relation to a compliance requirement

Finding 13-SA-02 (Materinl Weakness)

Cunelition:

The Authority maintains a spave parls perpetual inventory system which is not reconciled
periodically with physical counts, DifTerences are almost identified and processed at the end of
liscal year. Test counts realived during our audlt showed slgnificant dillerences with the perpetual

revords. This condition is similar as in prior year audit,

Criteric:
Perpetual inventory records provide a method for proper saleguarding of inventory against loss and

intentional or wnintentional erors,

Cause of Condition:
Perpetual inventory records are not updated on u timely basis for purchases and usage and are not

reeonciled periodically with the gencral ledper.

Effect of Condition:

Perpetual inventory records do not reflect the actual value and quantities of the sparc parls
inventory, Grrers in spare parts inventory could go undeteeted resulting in improper safeguard of
this asset. Significant variances between the actual physical count and the perpetual records cannol
be investigated due to the luck of timely reconcilintion procedures, Lack of proper internal control
procedures over spare pavts inventory could vesult in improper charges o federal program exposing
the Authority to unallowable costs by U.S Federal Transit Adminisiration,

Revommendation;
The Authority should implement procedurcs that require monthly reconciliations of the spare pars
inventory as reflected in the gencral ledger and the perpetual inventory record, Differences should

be investigated and adjusted,



PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Component Unil of the Commaomwealtlh of Pierta Rico)

SCHERLLEOF FINDINGS AND QUES TIONEL COSTS
YEATRL ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

I addition, to assure that perpetual records present an aceuvate relleetion of quantitics on hand, a
formal program of cycle counting procedures should be fustituted, These proeedures should include
the tollowing:
= Formal scheduling of items to be counted and periodic management veview Lo assure adherence
fo the schedule,
e Reconcillation of perpetual records and actual counts,
o Adjustment ol perpetual records to actwal quantitics resulting from known differences and
documentation of the reasons for such adjustments.
¢ lVollow-up to determine the causes for differences so (hat procedural weaknesses may he
remedied.
o Periodic reporting to appropriate Authority personnel of the resullsy of the cyele counting
procedures.
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

{A Componemt Ball of the Conmenwealth of Puerto Rico)

SUMMARY OF SCHEDLULE OF PRIO YEARS AULRIT FINDINGS
YEAR LMY JLENE 30, 2013

The following prioe years findings have not heen corvected since similay instances were noted
duoring the single sudit for the year ended June 30, 2013,

Finding 12-FS-01 (Materinl Wenliness)

Conditfon:

The Authority’s year end spare parks Inventory listing was initially prepared from the perpetual
records ol quantitics on hand al (hat date. Tt was subscquently determined that adjustment of the
perpelual records 1o actual counts had not been made. Therelore, the perpetual recards were not
reliable and an adjustiment to them was made. In addition the spare parts inventory perpetual records
were not reconciled with the general ledger and with actual quantitics on hand in the warchouse,
Therclore differences are not processed on a limely basis bul are accumulated and in certain cases

are processed at the end of the fiscal year.

Recommendeation:
The Authority should implement procedures that requive monthly reconciliations of 1he spare parts
inventory s reflected in the general ledger and the perpetual inventory record, Dillerences should

be investigated and adjusted.

in addition, 1o assuve (hat perpetual records present an accwite reflection ol quantitics on hand, a

formal program of cycle counting procedures shonld be instituted. These procedures should include

the following:

o Formal scheduling of itoms ta be counted and periodic management review to assure adherence
to the schedule.

o Reconciliwtion of perpetual records and actual counts,

v Adjusiment of perpelual records o acuml quintities resulting from known dificrences and
documentation ol the reasons lor such adjustiments,

o Follow-up to determing the cavses for dilferences so that procedural weaknesses may be
remedied,

e Perindic reporling to appropriate Authority personnel of the resulis of the eyele counting
procedures.

Current slitus:

Condition still prevail. No action taken by Management,
Simitar lnding in current yeur,

See lnding 13-01,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Cumprunent Unit of the Commaonwealth of Puerle Rlco)

SUMMARY QF SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUBDIT FINDINGS
YEAR TN JUNE 30, 2013

Finding 12-F5-02 (Materinl Wenkness)

Candition:
The closing process is informal and needs o clear definition of responsibilitics and communication

between  different departments involved. n certain Instances no timel ¥ communication or
documentation is provided to the accounting department for the proper recording of non-routine

Lransaclions,

Recommendaiion:

n order to ensure that all aceounting procedures are performed on o timely basis, manapement
should cstablish policies to document the month and year end procedures that should be followed
bye the accounting departiment as well as any other department that provide financial Information
required for the preparation of financial stalements. ‘This conld be accomplished by the develop ol a
comprehensive checklist that cover all procedures that the Authority determines necessary to be
perfermed on a periodic basis including, but not limited to, month end procedures such as bank

reconciliatlons, wnd general ledger account analysis, ele.

Current slatus:
Condition still prevail. No action taken by Management,

Similar linding in current year,
Sce finding 13-02,

Finding 12-I'S-03

Cenelitiont:
AlJune 30, 2013 the Authority has smounts outstanding with other public corporations or agencies

ol the Commaonwealth of Puerto Rico amounting to approx imately $26.8 millions. 'his amount
represents amounts due for payroll withholdings, utilitics and other related services,

Hecommendation;
Mianagement should look for financing alternatives (o comply and pay these liabilities when due in

accordance with laws and regulations in ovder to avoid the payment of interest and penaltics.

Clurrent status;

Condition still prevail. Nu action taken by Management,
Similar finding in curcent year.

See finding 13-03.
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Communwenlth of Fierta Rica)

SUNMMARY OF SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2013

Finding 12-F5-04

Canelition;
The Cubic System reported obtained trom each bus al the end of the day, which details the numbcer

of passenpers that used the service during the day and the relmed rates is not reconciled with the
amount of cash delivered to Ranger Amertean lor deposit into the bank, Also, the equipment use o
sateguard the money deposited in the bus somctimes gets stuck in the middle of the route and
although the passenger deposits the money, it is not accounted in the Cubic System.

Recommendation:
Bus drhvers should be instructed and trained to use the Cubic System to keep track of the passenger
aclivity during the days. This will assist management in making an independent verification of

passcnger revenues accounted for during & particular period.

Current slatus:
Condition still prevail. No action laken by Management.

Similar finding in curvent year,
See finding 13-06.

Finding 12-VS-015

Condition;
During our eash audit procedures, we noted that the outstanding checklist for the payroll account at

June 30, 2013 contained checks dated as carly July 2011, Some of these checks are lor sipnilficant
amouits considered thal this is a payroll account and employees cash the checks as soon as they pot
it, lor example there are cheeks for over $1,000 dated as early as July 2011 and checks over $5,000
dated December 2011, Tn addition old checks in the payroll accounts as of June 30, 2011 wee
reclassified to unclaimed check account but were nol investigated,

Reconmmendation;
We recommend that management establish a formal, written puolicy concerning uneashied checks

hased on current applicable laws, Such a policy should specify sging milestones with required
netions, For example, this policy might specify thalt when checks ave past 60 days old, the payee
should be contacted. Aler 90 duys, the checks should be moved to suspense or written of1

In addition as part of the review and approval of the bunk reconciliation, the reviewer should trace
significant reconclling ftems 1o supporting documents and he should also pay special atlention 1o
old checks outstanding or other reconeiling items.

Clurrent stntus:
Corrected
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Compuient Unit of the Commanwenlili of Poerio Rica)

SUMMARY OF SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AULICT FINDINGS
YEAI MDA JUINIE 0, 2013

Finding 12-I'5-06

Conddition:
Buring our audit we observed that personnel files are not being kept current and in some instances
were incomplete. In cerfaln instances, [orms such as OP-15, among others, are not included in the

files.

Recanunendation:
Procedures should be implemented to assure that all personnel files are current misd complete in

accordance with Lows and regulations,

Current status;:
Conditlon still prevail. No uction taken by Management.

Finding 12-U8-07 (Materlal Wenkness)

Condition:
During our cash audit procedures, we noted (hat the bank statements were accumulated for several

months belore they were reconciled to the appropriate general ledger controls,

Recommendation:

Bank reconciliations should be reconciled every month, The composition of wnreconciled
differences, if any, should be determined and followed up on, and any journal enteles deemed
necossury us o result be recorded. In addition the bank reconcilintions should be reviewed for
aceuracy and completeness on a timely basis by » designated officer, The review should include
tests of mechanical accuracy and lracing of items on the reconciliation to the relevant source

thrcuments,

Current status:
Corected
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PUERTO RI1ICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Commonwenlth of Puerta Riecw}

SUMMARY OF SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS

YUEAR ENIED JNE 30, 2013

Finding 12-F8-08

Condition;
In certain instances we nated that sociul security lax wis paid late.

Recomendation:
Proper controls should be implemented In order to be sure thut (he weekly amount due of social
securily is informed correctly to the accounting department and is paid in accordance with laws and

repulations,

Currenl status:

Condition still prevail. No action taken by Management.
Similar finding in current year.

See finding [3-05.

Findings 12-F8-09 (Material Wealkuess)

Conlition:
‘The Authorily records the cost of certain post-cmployment benefits provided to eligible employees

in accordance with collective burgaining agreementy when paid which is a method not accepted by
necounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP™),

Recommendeation:
Management should hire an actuary to perform the evaluation required by GAAP. Finuncial

statements should be adjusted accordingly,

Current stalus:

Condition still prevail. No action taken by Management,
Similar thiding in cureent year,

See finding 13-07,
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PUERTO RICO METROPOILITAN BUS AUTHHORITY

(A Component Unit of the Commonwealih of Puerto Rico)

SUMMARY OF SCHEDULE OF PRIOK Y EARS ALIDIT FINDINGS
YEAR EWDED MM 30, 2003

Seetion 3 — Findings awl Questioned Costs Reluting to Federal Awards
Finding 12-5A-01

Federal Pragram.
2(0.507 Federal Transit Administration Capital and Operating Assistance Formula Grants
20.507 ARRA-Federal Transit Administration Capital sind Operating Assistance Formula Grants

Federal Gravtor;
Federal Transit Adminisiration

Complicnes Requivement:
Equipment and real property management

Reprorting Regiivement:
Non-compliance in relation o a compliance requirement

Condition:
There is no physical inventory of equipment sequired with federal lunds

Recommendeation:
Proper controls and procedures should be established in wider to ussure compliance with program
laws and regulations at all lime,

Curent stilus:
Cuorrceted



PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

tA Component Unit of the Commovwendtl of Puerte Rica)

SUMMARY OF SUHEDULE OF PRIOI YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE M), 2013

Finding 12-5A-02

Fedeval Progvam:
20.507 Federal Tramsit Administeation Capital and Operating Assistance Formula Grants

f"[!‘ffﬂ‘.l'ﬁf GJ"-‘.'J‘HHH'.'
Iederal Transit Administeation

Complianee Requirement:
Reporting

Keporiing Reqguivement.
Non-compliance in relation to a compliance requirement

Condition:
Daring awr procedure to test compliance with the federal program reporting requirement, we noted

the information in annual Finanelal Status Report does not agree with related information in e
Authority’s general ledger.

Current stafus:
Condition still prevail. No action taken by Management,



PUERTO RICO METROI'OLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Component Unil of the Commuonwealth of Puertn Itico)

SUMMARY OF SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED- NG M, 20078

Finding 12-5A-03

Fedleral Program:
20.507 Federal Transit Administration Capital and Operating Assistunce Formula Grants

Federed Crremior:
Federal Transit Administration

Complieonce Requivemen;
Activities Allowed and Unallowed

Repavting Requirement;
Non-compliance in relation to a compliunce requirement

Ceneditlon:
During our procedure to test complivnee with the federal program activities allowed or unallowed,

we noted that the pay rate used in the payroll submitted for reimbursement with federal funds does
not agree with the pay rate in the Form OP-13 available in the cmployee’s file.

Recommendation:
Procedures should be implemented fo assure that all personuel files are cwrrent and complete In

accordancee with laws and regulations. Amounts paid to emplovees should be based on actual
approved rates us documented in personnel files.

Current status:
Condition still prevail. No action taken by Management.



PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTHORITY

(A Componenl Unit of the Commanwealth of Pocrio Ricu)

SUMMARY OF SCHEDULL OF PRIOR YREARS AUDIF FININNGS
YEAR EMDED JUNE 3, 2013

Finding 12-SA-04

Fedeved Program:
20,507 Federal Transit Administration Capital wnd Operating Assistance Formula Grants
20.507 ARRA-Federal Transit Administrtion Capital and Operating Assistance Formula Grants

Fedvral Grantor:
Vederal Transit Administration

Complicnee Reguirement;
IN/A

Reporiing Reguivement:
Material weakness in internal control over complinnce

Conelition;
See Finding 12-FS-01. This finding relales 1o 8 material weakness In Internal control over a major

lederal program that is required to be reported under OMIR Cireular A-133,

Finding 11-SA-01, [0-SA-03, 10-5A-05, 09-SA-03

Federal Program:
20.307 Federal Transit Adminlstration Capital and Operating Assistance Formul Grants

Federal Ciremiar:
Federal Tvansit Administeation

Compliance Regreivement
Reporting

Candition;
During our procedure (o test complinnee with the lederal prograim reporling requirement, we noted
thal the information in annual Financial Status Report docs not agree with related information in the

Authority’s general ledger,
Steitrs of Corrective Action:

Condition still prevail. No actlon taken by Management.
Similar instances were noted during year ended June 20, 2012, Sce 12-SA-02.
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PUERTO RICO METROPOLITAN BUS AUTITORITY

(A Component Unlt of the Commwonwealth of Puerto Rico)

SUMMARY OF SCHEDULE (F PRIOIR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDIY JUME 30, 2003

Finding 11-SA-02
Federal Program:
20,507 Federal Transit Admindstration Capital and Operating Assistance Formula Grants
201507 ARRA-Federal ‘Transit Administration Capital and Operating Assistance Forimula Grants

Federal Gramor:
Fuederal Transil Administration

Compliance Requivement:
Fquipmenl and real properly manngement

Condition;
There is no physical inventory of equipment aequired in foderal fands,

Steetns of Carvective detion
Condition still prevail. No action taken by Management.
Sinvilar instances were noted during year ended June 30, 2012, See 12.SA-01.

Finding 11-SA-03, 10-SA-07

Federal Progrean:

20.507 Federal Transit Adminlsiration Capital and Operating Assistance Formula Grants
20.507 ARRA-Federal Transit Administration Capital and Operating Assistance Formula Grants

Federal oy
Federal Transit Administration

Compliance Regnivement:
NIA

Cemaclition:

The Authority’s year-end spare parts inventory listing was initinlly prepared from the perpetual
records of quantities on hand at that date. Tt was subsequently determined that adjustment ol the
perpetal records to actual counts had not been made, Therelore, the perpetual recortds were ot
reliable and an adjustment to them was made. In addition the spare parts inventory perpetual records
were not reconciled with the general ledger and with actual quantities on hand in the warchouse.
Therefore differcnces are not identified and corrected on a timely hasis. Also receipts and uses of
spare parts are nol processed on a timely basis but are accumulated and in certain eases me
processed at the end of the liscal year,

Status of Corvective Aetion:
Condition still prevail. No action taken by Management,
Similar instances were noted during year ended June 30, 2012, See 12-SA-04.

The following prior years findings are consideved closed cither beenuse no similur instances

were noted in subsequent yeurs of because no further notices has been reecived front FTA.
10-01, 10-02, 10-04, 10-06, 10—08, 09-01, 09.02, 09-03, (09- 06,
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